APPROVED/BOARD OF FINANCE MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 4, 2007

A regular meeting of the Board of Finance was held on Wednesday, April 4, 2007 in the conference
room in Town Hall at 7:30 p.m..

Members Present: Marty Heiser, Chairman; Kevin Walsh, Vice Chairman; David Ulmer, Glenn
Cordelli, and Peter Gomez

Town Officials: Jay Wahlberg, Controller; Dr. Kenneth Freeston, Superintendent of Schools;
Dan Carlin, BOE Business Manager; Keith Miller, Chairman, Board of
Education
Janie Friedlander, Special Education/Pupil Services Director
Guests: Attorney Marsha B. Moses, (Berchem, Moses & Devlin, PC) Special Counsel to
BOE
AGENDA

1. Board of Education
a. Capital Budget
b. Operating Budget

2. Adjournment

Mr. Heiser called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

BOARD OF EDUCATION

The Board discussed special education and the amount of ECS (educational cost sharing) that the Town
receives from the State that Governor Rell has proposed increasing by increasing the State income tax.

Mr. Gomez asked for a “broad brush” picture of the BOE’s y-t-d budget position and Mr. Carlin
responded that, other than special education, the budget was less than $100k to the good. Dr. Freeston
said that the BOE is concerned about utility costs as well as the special education costs. Mr. Gomez
said the BOF reviews the y-t-d budget status carefully at the end of May and again in June department
by department and asked that the BOE keep the BOF informed of said budget status.

Mr. Ulmer said the BOF currently receives the BOE’s monthly reports which keep the BOF current on
the BOE’s budget status, and Mr. Carlin reports biweekly on y-t-d balances.

Mr. Cordelli asked if there were any encumbrances that could be closed out so that the monies could
be applied to mill rate reduction. Dr. Freeston responded that they do an encumbrance-by-
encumbrance review. Mr. Cordelli said the BOF is looking for an “earlier turn-back”.

Mr. Cordelli asked for the details of an energy contract he read about in the local newspaper and Dr.
Freeston said the BOE has a contract with the Energy Education Company and follows its protocols for
reduction of use and has realized a $100k savings, adjusted for the warmth of the winter. A
representative of the company will be at the June BOE meeting. Dr. Freeston said: “...it’s a wonderful

Board of Finance Minutes 4/4/2007 Page 1 of 4



program, a very impressive program.” Mr. Carlin said it works out to be cost avoidance because rate
increases have used up the savings.

Mr. Cordelli asked about the technology maintenance budget. Mr. Carlin said the $100k contract
services increase Mr. Cordelli noted was for maintenance of the video-on-demand (a digital image
retrieval system) tool.

Mr. Ulmer turned the discussion to staffing, noting there was no increase in staff in the contingency
budget and one paraprofessional at the high school in the lever budget. Dr. Freeston said there was a
reduction of six elementary school teachers.

The special resources police officer was discussed and the BOE seemed pleased to learn that the $50k
it had budgeted for this was being covered in the Town’s budget.

The 1/3, 1/3, 1/3 cost-sharing formula for field maintenance was discussed. Dr. Freeston anticipates
the BOE’s third will increase by approximately $100k annually because of the sinking fund for field
replacement and that will be part of the maintenance agreement.

Mr. Cordelli asked about the activities fee at the middle schools and Dr. Freeston responded that the
BOE does not have the legal authority to enforce the fee so it is “voluntary”. Mr. Carlin said $8,500.00
is collected from each of the middle schools and the money goes directly into the General Fund. Mr.
Wahlberg said that it is a special revenue fund and it does not lapse at year end and offsets BOE costs
to maintain those facilities under rental.

Mr. Cordelli noted his surprise that overtime costs for school custodians have increased at the same
time that the number of school custodians has increased. Mr. Carlin said there is increased square
footage to be maintained, weekend events are numerous, and if anybody is sick they have to pay
overtime.

Mr. Walsh asked about ECS (Educational Cost Sharing) and Mr. Carlin responded that ECS is a State
grant that come to the Town to support special education costs. Dr. Freeston said the Town acquires
special education costs one child at a time. When there is agreement among home, school and legal,
the dollars can start to accrue. If a family files a complaint with the State it is generally a question of
whether or not the Town can provide appropriate services for the child or whether an out-placement is
required. If a child is out-placed, the Town has to bear the cost. Attorney Moses added that there are
cases where parents say the child needs residential placement and the cost of that placement can go as
high as $180k/$200k annually. Mr. Heiser asked if the Town provides services that bring students in
from other towns and Dr. Freeston responded “no, that never happens.... The income stream is not
sufficient to counterbalance the negative aspects that come from that type of program.” Mr. Gomez
asked how many out placements Ridgefield funds currents and Dr. Freeston said there were two at the
present time. Mr. Carlin added that two was actually low for Ridgefield’s population size.

Mr. Walsh asked if the entire legal budget was under “general services” and Mr. Carlin said there was
additional in the special education budget. ($40k in General Services; $89k in Special Education)

Board of Finance Minutes 4/4/2007 Page 2 of 4



Mr. Walsh asked about the rental space at Barlow Mountain as a potential revenue source, and Dr.
Freeston said the BOE had backed away from that and it does not see a need in the next couple of
years.

Mr. Walsh asked about the pay-for-play program and Mr. Carlin said it was a special revenue fund, a
rolling fund that doe not clear out each year. Dr. Freeston said the monies in that fund are only spent
on athletics. The athletic director has to go through Mr. Carlin in order to access the funds. The BOE
anticipates $350k from gate receipts and pay-for-play revenues, if it collects $355k, the extra $5k if
what rolls forward, but the $350k is budgeted and expended. Dr. Freeston said if the three-year phase
out of pay-for-play goes forward, the BOE will have to increase its budget to offset that lost revenue.

Mr. Cordelli said he was confused about the use of gate receipts to pay for officials and Mr. Carlin said
that ticket income is targeted to pay for officials but it is not a line for line allocation, they do not net it
out. One is revenue, one is expense. Mr. Cordelli said he has heard from parents that there is not
enough revenue to cover the expenses for each sport, e.g. supplies and uniforms. Dr. Freeston agreed
saying the revenues were grossly insufficient. Mr. Ulmer noted that the athletic budget for the High
School was $658k in 2003 and $1.084MM in 2007. He further noted that salaries increased 40% over
five years. Mr. Miller noted the increased enrollment and participation in athletics at the High School.
Mr. Carlin said that transportation was a big part of the increase. Mr. Ulmer asked how these open-
ended increases could be handled in the future other than pay-for-play. Dr. Freeston suggested
reducing programs and cutting back the number of teams, but parents said they were not willing to do
that and they were willing to pay.

Mr. Walsh asked Dr. Freeston to elaborate on his “we have to spend a lot more money on facilities”
comment made at the March 26, 2007 Public Hearing. Dr. Freeston said his comment was directed to
maintenance, and mandated testing (e.g. radon testing is mandated starting next year) not capital items.
Dr. Freeston said it’s all in the Lever Budget because it’s new expense and new expenses are always
put in the Lever Budget. Mr. Miller offered that the BOE can probably do better next year so there is
better clarity there.

Mr. Gomez asked about closing out the various building projects. Mr. Wahlberg said there was still
$3MM due the Town from the State. East Ridge and the High School are the two projects not yet
accepted. Dr. Freeston said the Building Committee has issues with those two projects, and arbitration
results when the vendor says it can not do the work. The BOE has not authority over a building project
until the project is approved. Dr. Freeston said the High School has smaller mechanical and electrical
issues Mr. Wahlberg said the $3MM will go to repay the money advance-funded to the building
projects. The Town is paying 4.5% interest on the advanced funds.

Mr. Walsh asked about the cost of preparing the Board of Education’s budget book noting that all the
information was posted on the BOE’s website. Dr. Freeston said the budget book is the BOE’s internal
management tool.

Addressing Dr. Freeston, Mr. Ulmer said: “you have done a great job.” Mr. Ulmer asked if there was a
recommended class size for electives. Dr. Freeston said that in order to start a new program, there
must be a minimum of fifteen students, to continue a program requires a minimum of ten students. Mr.
Ulmer said he wanted to understand the composition of the number of students in special education.

Board of Finance Minutes 4/4/2007 Page 3 of 4



the total education budget is for special education. $1.7MM over three years to get us to where we
want to be. There isn’t anybody lower than us in our comparison group. 12% of the total student
population is in special education.”

Mr. Walsh asked about the high school accreditation issue and Dr. Freeston responded: “great, we are
doing great on that, it’s a three-year process, I do not expect anything other than success.”

ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Mr. Cordelli and seconded by Mr. Heiser to adjourn the meeting at 10:30 p.m.
Vote, all in favor, unanimous. Motion carries.

Respectfully Submitted
Karen Rodgers, Recording Secretary

Board of Finance Minutes 4/4/2007 Page 4 of 4



